Portage Park District

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
October 16, 2023 5:30 pm

PPD Operations Center

8505 Nicodemus Road

Shalersville, OH 44266

Agenda
1. Roll Call

2. Adopt Agenda

3. Public Comment: Note: members of the public wishing to speak are asked to sign in. Comments will be
limited to two minutes per person.

4. Approve minutes of the September 2023 Regular Meeting

5. Presentation and approval of Financial Statement: September 2023 MTD and YTD Budget Report and
Cash Balance Reports

6. Executive Director/Staff Update

7. Other Information/Briefing ltems/Policy Updates:

8. Old Business and approval of action items: Ranger Policies

9. New Business and approval of action items:
a. RESOLUTION: Approve September 2023 Expenditures with Then and Now certificates

b. RESOLUTION: Authorize funding application to AMATS for HWT IX

10. Executive Session: Real Estate acquisition

11. Adjourn







Portage Park District
Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
September 18, 2023 5:30 pm

PPD Operations Center

8505 Nicodemus Road PARK
Shalersville, OH 44266 DISTRICT
Minutes

President Kurt Ruehr called the meeting to order at 5:32 pm

1.

7.

8.

Roll Call: Commissioners present: Commissioner Charles Engelhart, Commissioner Kurt Ruehr,
Commissioner Allan Orashan, Commissioner Tom Hrdy. Commissioner Renee Ruchotzke had an
excused absence. Staff Present: Christine Craycroft, Executive Director; Craig Alderman, Operations
Manager; Kevin Nietert, Chief Ranger; Bob Lange, Natural Areas Manager; Jen White Education
Outreach Manager, Eric Seachrist, Office Manager

Adopt Agenda: Upon a motion by Orashan and second by Hrdy, the agenda was approved. (JE 2023-38)

Public Comment: None

Approve minutes of the August 2023 Regular Meeting: Upon a motion by Hrdy and second by Englehart,
the minutes were approved. (JE 2023 39) '

Presentation and approval of Financial Statement: August 2023 MTD and YTD Budget Report and Cash
Balance Reports. Seachrist reviewed the Financial Statement with the Board, noting that the
expenditures for this budget year continue to be lower than expected. Upon a motion by Englehart and
second by Hrdy, the reports were approved. (JE 2023-40).

Executive Director/Staff Update: Craycroft and staff presented the attached report and answered
guestions from the Board.

Other Information/Briefing Items/Policy Updates:

a. Discussion on board policies vs. administrative policies and procedures: Ruehr noted that
Craycroft and he had discussed the question of how involved the Board should be in
oversight of policies. Craycroft stated Seachrist and she had begun gathering information on
definitions for Board versus administrative policies. Orashan motioned that the discussion
be tabled and Engelhart seconded the mation. The Board approved tabling the discussion
for this and following related items (Personnel and Ranger policies).

Personnel Policy changes (tabled)

c. Discussion of 10-year development forecast: Craycroft presented a forecast of ten-year
operations and capital costs oriented toward the revenues forecast from the passage of the
proposed November 2023 levy.

Old Business and approval of action items: Ranger Policies (tabled)

New Business and approval of action items:
a. Approve August 2023 Expenditures with Then and Now certificate: Upon a motion by Engelhart and
second by Orashan, RESOLUTION 2023-55 was unanimously approved.




b. Certification of 2024 Levy Proceeds: Upon a motion by Hrdy and second by Engelhart, RESOLUTION
2023-56 was unanimously approved.

9. Executive Session: None

10. Adiourn: Upon a motion by Orashan and second by Engelhart, the meeting was adjourned at 6:42 pm.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF we hereunto set our hands, October 16, 2023

Christin C%ﬂ,lﬁ(ecutive Director

Klrt Ruehr, President of the Board




PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT
Month to Date and Year To Date Budget & Cash Balance Report for September 2023

P

) GENERAL FUND
BEGINNING AUDITOR'S CASH BALANCE ~ September 1 L3 3,248,561.29
September YTD Percentage
ACCOUNT DESCRIFTION REVISED BUDGET YTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL Collected of Budget
152000 Contract Services 1,000.00 0.00 0.00] 0.0%
15300 Fees 100.00 1,600.00 600.00 1600.0%
160000 Gifts & Donations 6,650.00 50,000.00 0.00) 751.9%
192400 State Aid/Subsidy 85,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
General Program Revenues subtotal 52,750.00 51,600.00 600.00 55.6%
200300 Real Estate Homestead Rollback (from State) 32,744.00 31,767.32 1,603.06 97.0%
221000 Real Estate Tax 1,791,023.00 1,797,489.79 0.00 100.4%
223000 Tangible Personal Property Tax 0.00 106.97| 0.00
224000 Manufactured Homes Property Tax 0.00 12,260.36 0.00
230000 Interest 10,000.00 45,776.81 7,464.77 497.8%
241000 Ol & Gas Leases 10,000.00 14,067.78 2,425.84 140.7%
243000 Credit Card Incentives 1,000.00 1,100.00 0.00 110.0%
250000 Refunds and Reimbursements 0.00 12,445.36 428.45
251000 Jury Fees 0.00) 75.00 0.00)
270000 Sale of Fixed Assets 0.00 310.51 0.00
|General Opérations Revenue 1,844,767.00 1,919,399.90 11,922.12 104.0%
SUBTOTAL REVENUES 1,937,517.00 1,970,999.90 12,522.12 101.7%
2022 Cash Carryover 2,897,413.62 100.0%
ptember YTD Percentage
EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES REVISED BUDGET YTD ACTUAL MTD ACTUAL Expended of Budget
311200 FT Employee Salaries 640,000.00 446,101.26 64,359.15 69.7%
311300 PT Employee Salaries 100,000.00 61,577.98 10,028.66 61.6%
312100 Sick Leave Conversion 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
313000 Overtime 2,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
314000 Retirement 50,000.00 2,643.02 0.00 5.3%
321010 PERS 103,600.00 71,075.19 10,414.30 68.6%
321200 Medicare 10,730.00 7,245.68 1,055.18, 67.5%
321300 Warkers Compensation 9,452.00 8,675.21 1,264.57, 91.8%
321400 Unemployment 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
321500 Health Benefits 300,000.00) 76,626.20 11,362.92 25.5%
30 Personal Services Unit Total 1,227,782.00 673,944.54 98,484.78 54.9%
400000 Admin Contractual Services 120,000.00 99,828.75 29,248.39 83.2%
400100 Training, Lodging & Memberships 15,000.00] 10,899.70 322.50 72.7%
400101 Registration Fees 0.00 136.00 0.00
410000 Utilities; ATET, Dominion, Ohlo Edison, Verizon 20,000.00 15,130.39 2,100.51 75.7%
412000 Advertising, Marketing & Events 18,000.00 10,399.66 836.31 57.8%
413000 Maintenance & Repairs 30,000.00 11,520.07 1,591.18| 38.4%
414000 Rentals and Leases 100.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
414100 Leases 2,000.00 2,058.62| 94.73 102.9%
420000 Prof & Tech Services 0.00 1,480.02 4.02
420100 Audit Services 0.00 20.50 0.00
428000 Event Fees 0.00 250.00 250.00
428400 Auditor/Treasurer Fee 25,000.00 24,594.95 0.00 98.4%
428500 DRETAC 10,000.00 5,289.12 0.00 52.9%
492100 Local Share 98,400.00) 0.00 0.00 0.0%
40 Contractual Services Unit Total 338,500.00 181,607.78 34,447.64 53.7%
500000 Admin Materials & Supplies 19,000.00 12,802.75 664.84 67.4%
509000 Uniforms 10,000.00 4,921.65 234.93 49.2%
510000 Office Equipment & Furnishings 5,213.00 2,640.72 0.00 50.7%
530000 Maintenance Materials & Supplies 30,000.00 8,047.08 783.44 26.8%
542000 Fuel 20,000.00 15,524.41 1,593.13 77.6%
544000 Natural Areas Materials & Supplies 25,000.00 7,240.65 917.79 29.0%
596300 Equipment Less than $5000 6,000.00 1,952.16 0.00] 32.5%
596600 Furniture & Fixtures 8,000.00 2,325.25 0.00 29.1%
50 Materials & Supplies Unit Total 123,213.00 55,454.67 4,194.13 45.0%
610000 Land/Easement Purchase 400,000.00{ 21,382.50 0.00 5.3%
610000 Land/Easement Purchase-Bird Bog 2,501.83 0.00 0.00 0.0%
680000 Construction Projects 450,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
680000 Construction Projects DXPAV 130,320.50 169,288.09, 0.00 93.9%
680000 Construction Projects TLTRL 103,500.001 61,045.20 0.00] 59.0%
680000 Construction Projects TWBLD 35,160.00 33,600.00! 3,000.00 95.6%
680000 Construction Prajects TWBRD 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
1683000 Engineering Projects 150,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
1683000 Engineering Projects DAPAV 8,100.00 10,250.00 0.00 126.5%
683000 Engineering Projects - SRFDB - Seasons Rd Fen Design Build 28,992.00 1,092.00 0.00 3.8%
683000 Engineering Projects - TLTRL- Trail Lake Picnic Area 8,000.00 2,700.00 0.00 33.8%
683000 Engineering Projects - TWBRD Brady Tower 20,970.00) 1,180.40 0.00 5.6%
60 Capital Outiay Unit Tota! 1,537,544.33 300,538.19 3,000.00| 19.5%
920000 Advance Out 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 100.0%
946720 Tax Levy Assessment 36,000.00 35,911.48 0.00 99.8%
|20 Miscellaneous Expenses Unit Total 536,000.00 535,911.48 0.00 100.0%
GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES 3,763,039.33 1,747,456.66, 140,126.55 46.4%
ENDING AUDITOR'S CASH BALANCE September 30 (= Cash Carryover + YTD Revenues- YTD Expenses)
(Also = Auditor Beginning cash balance September st + MTD r - MTD ) $ 3,120,956.86







pngpikyb :QL weudboud

IS LJYIBISS HY AT

f - 9€:0T €Z0Z/0T/0T :paledsusb Juoday
€zbny J43y £72°¥9¥' - N3ID €202/2T/60 /S6000/60/£702

%' L6V T879L.°'6F 00° LL VOV L- 18°9.L°6h- 000°0T- 000°0T- AS943IUT  0000£Z 26060098

%0°00T 9£709Z'ZT 00" 00° 9£7092'Z1- 0 0 2WOH UeW 000¥2Z 26060098

%0°00T £6°90T 00" 00° 16"90T- 0 0 dd Buel 000£zz 76060098

%P"00T 62°99%‘9 00" 00° 6L°68Y L6L°T- €20'T6L°T- €20°T6L°T- Xel 34 000TZZ 26060098
£202 PedISSWOH HW SWH HA d43d 90°€£09°T- N3ID €202/T0/60 8:T1000/60/£707

%0°00T 90°€09°T 00° 90°£09 ‘T~ 90°€09°T- 0 0 AQLLY WH W 00P00Z 26060098

*%1 "6 L7648 00" 00" 9Z " p9T*0E- bvLize- 0 PIsSeWOH 3¥ (Q0E00Z 26060098

WO ULWPY |edauan dled

%9°8S  0070ST T~ 00° 00° 009~ 007009 TS~ 0S2°26- 0SZ2°Z6- Ud ULWPY [BJIDSUBD dded IVIOL

«%0° 00°000°S8- 00° 00° 00" 000°s8- 000°58- pLsqns 1s  00¥Z6T 16060098

%6°TSL 00°05£'t¥ 00° 00° 00°000°05- 059°9- 0S9°9- uea/siitd>  00009T T6060093
LT L|92Jed S8°ZS-SHT-U0d 606 433 00°00€E~ d¥D £202/52/60 Z/8100/60/£202
ST L3¥dJed §8°ZS-SHT—uod 606 434 00°00£- d¥D £202/52/60 7/8T00/60/£20C

%0°009T 00°00S‘T 00° 00" 009~ 00°009°T- 00T- 001~ s@dd  Q00€ST T6060098

*%0" 00°000°T~ 00° 00" 00" 000°T- 000°T- AJd3S U03  000TST T6060098

U Lwpy

| EA2UD9D MJed T606009E

102/3sNn 135dng SIADNVHENNONT IVNLDY dl IVNALOVY JLA 135dng d0dddVv 1DLd3SLd Mfded 9bel.od 0098
1.D0d JTIVIIVAY J3STAIY “IYNIDINO 1404 SLINNODIDV

6 €202 0L 6 £Z0Z 1IvVli3a TvNINOC 60 €20¢ ¥od

L¥0d3y 1390N8 31vVa-0l-¥VIA
ALNNOD 39V1¥0d




11 wedboud

pngpif| 6

102/3sN

LDd

6 £20¢

uonnjos tiasakpE T o

siunw

139ang
JI18VIIVAY

SIONVHIWNINT

0L 6 €207 1Iv1iaa TvNinocC

IVNLOV dli

IVNLOY dLA

135dn4
J3SIATY

d0¥ddV
TYNIOTAHO

32L13sLd d.ed

s ldyoeass 435N
Z abed 9€10T m~o~uﬁ\3 :paieasush jJodsy
%0° 00°000°‘Z 00° 00" 00° 000‘Z 000°'Z alWLIIDAO Q0DETE £6060098
%0" 00°000°¢ 00° 00" 00" 000'2 000'2 @ABaT }OLS O0TZTE £6060098
TI0UAVd y=NNA  £Z6260=LNVIUVM €Z6260 23¥ E€T°TZC'E cdd £20Z/62/60 889T00/60/£202
TT0UAVd #=NNY  £ZSTH0=LNVIYVM €ZST60 43¥ 8$°696°Z cd¥d £70Z/ST/60 889000/60/£20C
TT0UAVd =NNY  E£ZTO60=LNVHIVYM £2T060 43¥ S6°/£8°¢€ C¥d €202/T10/60 9£0000/60/£202
%9°T19 20°2Zy'8¢E 00" 99°870°0T 86°245°19 000°00T 000 00T LeS 1d OO0fITE £6060098
TI0UAVd $=NNY  £Z6Z60=LNVIUYM £26260 434 0y°225'12 Cdd £202/62/60 889T00/60/€207
T170¥AVd p=NNd  E£ZSTEO=LNVIIVM €2ST60 43¥ OF°22£°'Te £¥d £202/S1/60 889000/60/£20Z
T10HAVd $=NNY¥  E£ZTO60=LNYNAVM €TT060 43Y SEPTL'TT cud €202/10/60 9£0000/60/€20Z
%.°69 ¥.°868°€6T 00° ST 6SE‘V9 97" 10T ‘9vv 000°0¥9 000°0¥9 Les Ldw3a QOZITE £6060098
Sd ULILPY | RJBU3D d.ded £6060098
%0°v0T 06°2£9°v. 00° 21226 11~ 06°66€°6T6'T- 292°¥¥8°'T- €20°TT8°'T- d0 ULWPY [BJRUDD 3Jed TVLIOL
%0°00T TS°0T¢ 00" 00" TS 01€- 0 0 vd ®LeS 00007 76060098
%0°00T 00°SZ 00" 00" 009~ 0 0 s9ad AunC  Q00TSZ 26060098
$334 ONISOTD 40 LIN3WISUNTIWIIY 606 43 00°SZh- ddd €202/6T/60 £¥9100/60/£202
TO000-£8E£2822k10 punjad 3Lpadd 606 43¥ Sv-g- d¥d £202/.0/60 T¥/000/60/€20Z
%0°00T 9£°Stv‘TT 00° Sv-8Zy- 9e"SpbZT- (1] 0 spungayd 0000S< 26060098
%0"0TT 00°00T 00 00" 00°00T ‘T~ 000°T- 000°T- SAIURDUT  Q00£bC 26060098
SLL@M uyeH ‘uosdwoyl-xia ‘Xiq 606 33¥ 92°/8- d¥D £202/52/60 7.8T00/60/£20T
9-£# NHVH 606 434 £2°/1S'T- d¥D £202/6T/60 £¥9T00/60/£20¢
T JloyuaLauy 606 434 8/° /€T~ d¥d £202/20/60 T¥2000/60/£202
T 201 10d-9|SLLJeD ‘T sniLsoud 606 434 £0°£89- dyd £202/.0/60 T¥2000/60/£202
%L°OPT 8L7190‘t 00" ¥8 Seve- 8L°290°vT- 000°0T- 000°0T~ 9ses1 L0 000IvZ 26060098

abel.od 009%
1¥04 SINNODDV

60 £20Z ¥od

LH0d3N 139dNg 31vA-OL-dVIA

ALNNOD 39V.L¥O0d



¢ abed

PITZES
6TLTES
0T.TES
€SZTES
PeTIES
96TTES
9STTES

0060€S
0060€S

%€" 56

%6° S

%5°9¢

%0°

%8°T6

%57 L9

%9°89
%€'S

7102/3sN
10d

6 €207 OL 6 €70z 1Ivl3d TvN¥noc

Jopulewdd - apLnd wedboud || ed
SIA MAVd/OWAa ISIW ANV DNITINVH
THISIA d¥Vd IAIND WYdD0dd 1Ivd

DTULSTA MAVd IOVLHOd-SAVIT]
W ueg - s3bJeyd 1L4ouds Yi|esH
ueq ‘spLnb wedboudd - 1SIQ Muvd

860 TOTO 00¥8 Z6SS IunoddV

SJdauued - 1DTYISIA Mivd
SpJE) SsoulsSng - 1DIUISIA MYvd

ob-2sZ‘s

9¥ LE8 €SS

T110¥AvVd
T10dAVd
TI0YAVd

08°£28'€TT

00°000°0T
TI0UAVd
TI0¥AVd
TI0¥AVd

647942
T10YAVd
TI0dAVd
TI08AVYd

e v8r e
TI0™AVd

TI0¥AVd
TI0UAVd

T8 v2s‘ee

86°9S€ ‘LY

135ang
JTIVIIVAY

S8°899°¢

00"

6£°86V 92

82 ¥8¥ ‘86

P=NNY  £Z6Z60=LNvidvM
p=NNd  £ZST60=LNVIIYM
b=NNY  £ZTO60=LNVYIVM

00°

00"

26729811

00"

P=NNY  £Z6Z60=LNVIIVM
P=NNY  EZST60=LNVYdVM
P=NNd  £ZTO60=LNVIIVM

00°

L8°¥92'1

P=NNA  £Z6Z60=LNVIYYM
P=NNY  €ZST60=LNVIUYM
P=NNY  £ZTO60=LNV¥dVM

00°

8T°SSO‘T

P=NNd  £Z26Z60=LNVidvM
P=NNd  £ZSTE0=LNVIIVM
V=NNY¥ €ZT060=LNVIIVM

00"

00°

SADNVHAWNDNT

0E"¥TI¥ ‘0T

00°

AVNLDY dll

JddX3 NOIS ANV LINIdd
VOX3 ONITWIIH L¥390¥
JY¥dX3 NOIS ANV LINI¥d
OIHO 31V.lS 40 Svayl
A2UN0SIA NVYWNH 0D Od

13NVC HONVEHSVA

JINVE sn

JddX3d NOIS ANV LININd
JUdX3A NOIS ANV INI¥d

S.°8/0'26

¥S v¥6°€L9

02°929'92

00"

TZ°SL9°8

89°S¥Z 2

6T°SL0°TL

20T EV9°Z

VLDV dlA

CETLZZLHOA [S8VTED
Z8Y9ZLHOA 258200
8LYITLHOA LBYTEOD
9Z¥SZLHOA 6¥.200
8TYSTZHOA STS8H0
SOVSZLHOA LS8EVOD
8PESZLHOA §81Z00

suedl
629V ZLHOA L8YTED
LT9VTLHOA L8PTEOD

000°TTT

2824221

£76260
£2ST60
€2T060

000 00€

00001
£26760
£25160
€CT060

2516
£26260
€ZST60
€2T060

og2'0T
£76760
£25160
£CT060

009°£0T

000°0S

145and
J3SIATY

aNA 6£°296°C
aNA 00°000°C

QNA ST"888°8ST

aNA 00°SS
aNA $¥9°79S°‘T
aNA 00°S29
aNA TZ°6S2

433 00°000‘6-

aNA 00°00T
aNA 0079

000°0¢

824221

434 0Z°L28°¢€
434 0Z°22S°€
438 ZS"80¢‘t

000°00¢

000 0T

43y €£2°/TH
434 96° ¢TIV
43Y 8 vEY
5h‘6

d43¥ 9% " 8¢
434 28" vbe
43¥ 06°T9¢
0€L'0T

43¥ QT°9¢h €
434 88 00% ‘€
43 Z€"L/5°€

009 ‘£0T

000°0S

d0dddv
TYNISTHO

Idv
Idv
Idv
Idv
Idv
Idv
Idv
vna
Idv
Idv

PNgpak |6
asLJdyoesss

tar weudfoud
ta9sn

9€:QT mNON\OH\Qﬁ ipaledsush juodoy

£202/61/60
€202/21/60
£202/21/60
£202/50/60
£202/50/60
£202/50/60
£202/10/60
€202/10/60
£202/10/60
€202/10/60

AdDS Jluod

855T00/60/€207
8TTT00/60/€207
8TTT00/60/£20Z
TL¥000/60/£202
TZ¥000/60/£202
TZr000/60/£202
04¥000/60/£20Z
£52000/60/£207
680000/60/£202
680000/60/£202

00000t 6060098

Sd ULWPY |BJBUID MJed TIVLOL

Cdd
Cdd
Cdd

Cid
Cdd
Cdd

Cid
Cdd
Cyd

Cidd
Cid
[dd

10L43SLa dded

£202/62/60
€202/S1/60
£202/10/60

Y2 Le3H

Ao dwsun

£202/62/60
€202/51/60
£202/T0/60

dwod s)IM
€20Z/62/60
£202/51/60
€202/10/60

AJBdLpaN
£202/62/60
£20Z/51/60
£202/10/60

S¥3d

Juswad L1ay

889T00/60/£202
889000/60/£20T
9€£0000/60/£202

00STZE £6060098

00¥TZE €6060098
889100/60/£20¢
889000/60/£202
9£0000/60/£202
00€TZE £6060098
889100/60/£20¢
289000/60/£20¢
9£0000/60/£202Z
00CTZE £6060098
889T00/60/£207
889000/60/£202
9£0000/60/£202

0T0TZE £6060098

000+TE £6060098

obel.Jd0d
1d04 S.LINNODDY

60 €20Z ¥od

18043y 1390dn49 3LvA-O1-"VIA

ALNNOD 39V.LNOd



pngpak |6 :aI weaBoud

L I 1 -
89025S  ZbSO-00S I0BJIUOD §§ZE8ZT 12OV NISNG VLIONIW VIINOM  6ZTZZZHOA OTETO0 GNA £L°¥6 IdV £202/6T/60 85ST00/60/£207
sueJL 334 00°009 vna £202/T0/60 £52000/60/€202

%€'96  LT°S6 T 9%v €2°V6 79°850°C 0092 0002 sased1 00TVTv ¥6060098

%0° 00° 00T 00" 00" 00" 00T 00T asea1/3udd  000¥TF ¥6060098
L2TTES jded - Bog paig "py 96404 pLO IOL I19VLI¥0d 3IDVLIH0d  TZYSTZHIA £9ZSZO ANA 00°06 Idv £202/50/60 T.¥000/60/£202
9SZTES 860 TOTO 00¥8 Z65S IUnoddV JNVE SN SYESZZHOA S8YZ00 ONA ST'TOS‘T Idv £202/T0/60 0/000/60/£202

%5°€6 86°0S6'T S6°82S°'9T ST T16S'T £0°0ZS‘TT 000°0¢ 000°0% Jdowpiuw  Q00ETY 6060098
9SZTES 860 TOTO 00¥8 7655 IUNODIY MNVE SN 8¥ESZZHOA S8HZ00 ANA TE°9€8 Idv £202/T0/60 0/7000/60/£202

%9°98 00°0TP'Z ¥E°06T°S T£°9¢€8 99°66¢€ ‘0T 000°8T 000'ST BSLIJBADY 000ZTH ¥6060098
00TZES I8 80Z 600 OTT ON 322V NOSIG3 OIHO TETZZZHOA §Z8700 QNA 9£°S6 Idv £20Z/61/60 855100/60/£202
L69TES €¥6 608 YET OTT ON L1ODV NOSIQ3 OIHO  Z/¥9Z/HOA §28200 GNA 6T° L. Idv £202/21/60 8TTT00/60/£207
L69TES $86 790 6ET OTT ON LDV NOSIGQ3d OIHO  £/¥9Z/HOA §/8200 ANA T6°LbZ Idv €202/21/60 8TTT00/60/€207
L69TES 9Ty 0ST 6T OTT ON 1JOV NOSIQ3 OIHO  Z/¥9Z/HOA §28200 GNA 86°69 Idv £202/21/60 STTT00/60/£202
9STTES 860 TOTO 00b8 Z65S IUN0IDV MNVE SN 8PESZZHOA S8PZO0 ONA b €SS°T Idv €20¢/10/60 0/¥000/60/£202
suedl 434 00°00S‘T vnd €202/10/60 £52000/60/£202
#980¢€S 20¥8 T6TT 008T ¥ 12OV OIHO ADYANI NOINIWOQ  STIPTLHOA P8ZO0 ONA 09°9S Idv £20¢/10/60 630000/60/£202

«%2"T0T  £6°T19¢- 85°1€9°9 TS"00T‘Z 6£"0€T ST 00S ‘T2 000°02 saL3ILLLIN  Q000TY $6060098
sueJdl 434 00°00Z vna £202/T0/60 £52000/60/€20Z

%0°S. 00°0S 00°vT 00" 00°9€T 007 0 1sLb3y  TOTOOV ¥6060098
$90Z5S ‘BuLubis Je|Aw - JuUBWRSJINQULIY ANLLSIYHD LJOWDAVYD  8TTZTZHIA L9EZ00 ANA 00°0S Idv £20Z/6T/60 85ST00/60/£70C
9SZTIES 860 TOTO 00¥8 Z6SS UN0IDY JNVE SN 8PESZZHOA S8FZ00 ANA 0S°ZLZ Idv £20Z/T0/60 0/+000/60/£202
suedl 3434 00°000°Z vng £20Z/10/60 £52000/60/£20T

%0°26 SY'TIS $8°885°S 0§°22¢ 0£°668 ‘0T 00041 000°ST wan/Bull Q0TO0F 6060098
suedl 434 00°000°‘€ vnd £202/T0/60 £52000/60/£207
90605S o smopeap abeluod Jo [estedddy DOSSY GNV IING SUNOS  QEYVZLHOA OEIEVD GNA 00°00S°T Idv £202/10/60 680000/60/£202
GSBOES  OHRUVd I9VINOM-SIDIANIAS AMISINO4 SNOD ¥IGWIL TI3IMAT10D  £29¥Z/HOA €8/ZS0 GNA 00°0SZ°T Idv £202/T0/60 680000/60/£202

%.°16  00°0S2 00" 00°0§2°C 00°0S2°2 000°‘€ 0 AJDS JUOD AWdOd 00000v +6060098

102/3sn 139ang SIDNVHIWNDNT IvNLOVY dli AvOLDV diA 135dng d0dddVv 121125 Ld Yded abei.od 0098

124 J18VIIVAY Q3SIA3Y TYNIDIHO TH04 SLNNODDV

6 €207 OL 6 €707 1IV13A VNINOL 60 €202 ¥od

L3043y 1390dN9 3LVA-OLAVIA
ALNNOD 3FOVLNO0d

UgHnos Emmvﬁmaﬁ\»“_m Y



abed

9SCTIES

%L ¥L

%¥°06
9§ZTES
%L 56
OTCTES
9SZTES

%0° €8

%L 26

%€ " 06

%6°Z8

%b 86
LTTTES
+%0° 00T

%0°00T
OTLTES

%P " S6

102/3sSn

10d

¥860 TOTO 00¥8 76SS 3Iunoddv JINVE SN
00°000°2 6°2S6°TT yr°€8L 80°/b0°8
00" 00S 82°220°C 00" 2L°0v9°T

¥860 TOTO 00¥8 Z6SS 3Iun0ddVY JNvE sn
007059 se'ger‘s £6°VEL S9°1Z6‘Y

0SZEETOOT QI ASND NISNG V.LIONIW VDINOM

860 TOTO 00F8 Z6SS IunOIDV JINVE SN
0£°€25°¢E S6°€29‘Y ¥8° 99 S2°708°CT
90°86.L°'tZ 9T"$60" ZET ¥9° Ly “¥E 827£/09°'T18T
00°00S°6 00°006 ‘88 00° 00"
88°0T.‘tV 00" 00" <T7682°S
S0°Sov 00" 00° S6°¥6S ‘v

tdded 4oy 99d 1LWJdd 1SIA Muvd TVENLYN 40 1d3d OIHO
00°0s¢- 00° 00° 08¢ 00° 0S¢
00" 0S°6L 00" 0S5°0¢

TdiSIA dYvd 3AIND WvYD0Ud 11v4 JddX3d NOIS ANV LNINd

00°vL 86°SY rAi I 4 20°08Y T

139dng
318VIIVAY

SIDNVEEWNINI IVNLOVY dli IVNLDY dLA

6 EZ07 OL 6 £270Z 1IV.i3A TvNINOC

8YESZZHIA S8HZ00
suedl

000°£2

£1Z°S

8YESTLHIA S81Z00
suedl

000°ST

ZTHS2ZHOA QTETO0
8¥ESZLHOA S8YZ00
sueJdlL

000°T2

00S‘8€€

00t ‘86

000°0T

000°se
LTYSTLHOA S¥S800
0
suedL
00T

8/V9TLHOA LBYTED
suedl

009°T

1390n49
J3STIAIA

GNA 1" €84
434 00°000°‘€-

000°0¢

000‘€

ONA £6°PET
43¥ 00°000°S

000°8

aNA 88°90€
QaNA 96°LSE
434 00°000°T

000°ST

00s ‘822

00v°82

000°0T

000°SZ
aNA 00°0SZ
0

438 00°00T
0

aNA 20° ¥
434 00°009°T

0

dOdddV
TYNIDSTIHO

Idv
vng

Idv
vnga

Idv
Idv
vna

pnapa£Lb
15 LIYIBISD

141 weaboud
ta9sn

9€:0T £20Z/0T/0T :paleasusb uodan

£20Z/10/60
£202/T0/60

dns aupw

nba adLy40

£202/10/60
£202/T0/60

SWwJoy4 Lun

€202/50/60
€202/10/60
£202/10/60

s9L | ddns

U LY

[eJauas

0/¥000/60/£202
€52000/60/£202

0000€S 56060098

0000TS 56060098

0.000/60/€202
£52000/60/€202

000608 S6060098
TL¥000/60/£20¢
0.4000/60/£202
£52000/60/£20Z

000005 96060098

JBd SEO60098

SO ULWpy |eJ3udd JJded TVIOL

Idv

vng

Idv
vna

Jeys 207

ov.ind

994 J1/pnv
€202/50/60
S99d4 1UdA3
€202/10/60
AJBS YLpny

£202/71/60
£202/10/60

ylzaL/4oud

A2L435Ld fded

00TZ6% 6060098

0088ZF 6060098

00¥8ZF 6060098
TZ¥000/60/£202
0008ZY 16060098
£52000/60/£202
00T0ZF 6060098

8TTT00/60/£202
£52000/60/£202

0000¢y 6060098

abei.lod 00983
1¥0d4 SLINNODDV

60 €202 uod

1d0d3d 1390N4g ILVA-0OL-"¥VIA

ALNNOD 3I9VLNO0d



pnqpilALB 10I wedboud

9 abed 9€:0T Mwmmuwmw% :poIeUUb u..._umwu
%L" 00°000‘64T 00°000'T 00° 00" 000°0ST 0 foud 2suod guamL 000089 96060098
9£TTES OLAP pY BUUDABRY THZZ VIXI ONITWIIH 13380  €ZHSTLHOA 258200 ANA 00°000°€E Idv £702/50/60 T1/+000/60/£202
%r"86  00°09S 00'000'T 00°000‘€ 00°009°€€ 09T°S€ 0 foud 3suod algmL 000089 96060098
%0°00T 00" 08°¥S¥ Zv 00° 0Z°S¥0‘19 005 “£0T 0 foud 3suod T¥Ll1L 000089 96060098
%5'66  00°SZ6 TH 20T 0T 00" 60°882 ‘69T TZE‘08T 0 {oud 3suod Avdxa 000089 96060098
%0° 00°000°0S¥ 00° 00° 00’ 000°0SY 000°00T foud 3suod 000089 96060098
%9'/T £8°T90'C 00" 0v¥ 00" 0o* 205°2 0 yaund puel ogdyd 0000T9 96060098
%€*L  0S'LT9'0LE 000008 00° 05°28£°TT 000° 00V 000°0SZ us4nd puel  0O00T9 96060098

%.°6L 0€°€20°'S¢ €0°SEL TV ET° V6TV 19 tSt‘SS €T €T 000°T2T SW ULWPY |BJ4dudd dded TvIOL
%0°" 0t 00°008'Y SLvL8 00" 626262 000°8 000°'0T XLd B uJdnd 009968 S6060098
%0°00T 00° ¥8 L¥0‘Y Q0 9T"Z56°T 0009 000°S 0005>dLnba  Q0£965 S6060098
9SZTES ¥860 TOTO 00v® Z6SS IUN0IDY JINVE SN SPESTLHOA S8YZ00 ONA 62°LT6 IdvV £202/10/60 0.+000/60/£20C
suedl 434 00°000°‘'v- vng £202/10/60 £52000/60/£202
%" TL 00°000°9 SET6SL L 6.°.T6 97 0¥ 'L 000°TZ 000°0€ B3Jv LJIBN Q00FPS S6060098
TZTZES ANITOSVD €207 L1sSnonv ALID VNN3IAVY VETZTLHIA TLZP00 ONA b 92E'T Idv £202/61/60 255T00/60/€202
TTTZES 13s3IA £20Z L1sSnoONV ALID VYNN3AVY  €ETZZZHOA T.2v00 GNA 99°99Z Idv £202/61/60 255T00/60/£20Z
%S° L8 00°00S°T 65°626°T £T°€6S'T TP #2S'ST 000°0Z 000°02 Lend  000¢¥S S6060098

RERYER 135ang SAINVHEWNINT IVNLOV QLK avN1dv dlA 135an4 dOYddVv 10L43sLd d.ded abeidod 0098

12d 319V I1IVAY Q3ISTATY JYNIDINO - ¥04 SINNODDV

6 €202 0L 6 €£20T 1IvVli3g TTvNENOC 60 £20Z ¥od

1H0d3N 139dN8g 31VA-0OL-dVIA
ALNNOD 39V1d0d




pnqpaA| b6 :q1 weabouad

3SLJYydeasa Ja98n
£ L 9€:0T £20Z/0T/0T :pe1Raaudb 1Jodoy
98°956°0ZT ‘€ JDONVIVE anNnd dasIAIY
P2 Ebs e2Z SASNIJXI/SANNIATY 40 1IN - IONVIVE ANMd NI IONVHD
797 ETP L68'2 AINVIVE ANNd HOT¥d
L9°TIVP‘TPL'T 00 TLT VLT S§°9ZT OpT 99°9SP LP.'T  6E0°€9/°‘t 78T LWL'T SISNIdXT TvLiOL
06°278% ‘€€ 00" TS T- 06°666°0/6°'T- [IS“Z€6'T- €££/°P06°T-  S3INNIATY viOL
%8°2 LS V68 VLL'T  00°TLT'vLE P v09° 22T ¥z evsiezz- 2IS°ST8'T  60S°ZHe 3214ASLA YJed abeidod TvLiOL
%0°00T T5°88 00" 00" 8 TT6‘SES 000°9¢€S 000°02S W ULWpy |BJaudd dJded IvV.LOL
%8°66 25788 00" 00" 8Y TT6°SE 000°9¢ 00002 JUwsSsY 1L 022916 66060098
%0°00T 00° 00" 00" 00" 000°00S 000°00S 0 AN0 ApPY 000026 66060098
%0" 00° 00" a0* 00" 0 000008 ano suesl Q000T6 66060098

W ULWPY | eJ3U39 YJed £6060098

%0°92  €E'¥99°LET'T T8 TPE‘66 00°000°€ 6T 8€5°00¢€ PrS LES‘T  000°059 0D ULWPY |BJBUSD JBd TWIOL

%Z°¥T  00°000°ST 09°68L'T 00" 0F 08T'T 04602 0 foad uLbua QuaML 000E89 96060098
%0°00T 00° 00°005"S 00" 00°004°2 000°8 0 foud uLbua TLIL 000£89 96060098
%0°00T 00" 00°006 ‘L2 00° 00°Z60°T 76682 0 foad uLBua 804¥s 000E89 96060098
*%Z"€¥T  00°00S ‘€~ 00°05¢‘T 00" 00°052°0T 00T°8 ] foad uLBua Avdxd 000£89 96060098
%0° 00°000°0ST 00" 00" 00" 000°0ST 000°00€ foad uLbBua 000£89 96060098

RRYEN 135dnd SADNVAIWNDONT IVNLOV dliW AVNLDOVY dlA 135dng d0dddV 1231J43151d Y.ed abelriod

L2d JTEVIIVAY J3STATY JYNIDIHO - (oF]

6 €20¢ OL 6 £20Z 1Iv.i3a TVYNINOL 60 £20Z ¥od

LA0d3Y 1390N8 31LVQ-OL-¥VIA
ALNNOD IADVLHOd




8

abed
00°259°'62
00°000°00S
%2"989T-00"259'6¢S
%0 00°259'62
%0 00°259°6Z

%0°00T 00°000°‘00S

%0°00T 00°000°00S

102/3sN L3oana
123d 378V TIVAY

00°
00"

00°
00°

00°

SADNYHINWNING

99°159°6ZS
00°000°00S
99°TS9°6¢

00’
00’

00°
00°

00°

00"

00"

IVNLOV a1l

pngpaALb 1L wedboud
1sLIydeasa 1a9sn
9€:0T £20Z/0T/0T :poiedauab luaday

JONVIVE dONNd Q3SIAIY
SASNIAXI/SINNIATY 40 13N - IONVIVE ANNd NI IONVHD
AONVIVE ANNd ¥0Xdd

00" 759'62 0 SASNIdX3 TVL0L

00°000°00S- 0 0 SINNIATY WI0L

00° 000005~ 259°'6¢ 0 9A0JdWI S|LleJl SJ91EBMPEdH TV.IOL

00" 259'62 0 0D Jdwl S|Lledl sJd1empeaH v.LOL

00" Z59'67 0 Coud 3Isuod 000089 96065098
(0D JAWI SpLeJl SJ21BMpEaH 96065098

00°000'005- 0 0 O JdwI S| ledl SJD1eMPEAH TVIOL

00°000°00S- 0 0 UI @dueApvy (00006¢ 76065098

40 JOWT S| LleJl SJ2IEMPEAH 76065008

IVNLDY QLA 135ang d0odddy 9A0IAWT S| LRJLl SJ23BMPEaH 5098
Q3STAIY TYNIDIHO 1904 SLINNODDY

6 €20C OL 6 £Z0Z TIvVi3A VNINOL

60 £20Z ¥od

L¥0d3y 1390aNg 31VA-OLdVIA

ALNNOD 39V.1¥0d



pngpiA LB 1gI weaboad

s e s o
687 TL6°TT ADNVIVE aONNd gISIAIY
00" SASNIAXI/SANNIATY 40 13N - IONVIVE ANNd NI 3ONVHD
6E"TL6°TT AINVIVE ANNd HOTd
00°€46°TT Q0" 00" 00° €/6°TT 0 SISNAdXT IVIOL
%0° 00°€26°TT 00° 00° 00" €26°TT 0 paysJdalem 3asud oawiesdd VI0L
%0" 00°€46'TT 00" 00" 00" €L6°1T 0 SD JR1BM PRJD dIBuwieadg TvioL
%0° 00°£/6'TT 00" 00" 00" €26 1T 0 AJBS U0 00000F v6062098

SO J91BM 99.D }IBUe2Jd 1606L09R

q02/3sN L3oang SIDNVASWAONT  TVNLDY ALl IVNLIDY aLA L135ang d0dddV PaYsJa1em MoadD >Jauyea.d /098
12d 379V 1IVAY Q3aSIATY TYNIDIAO 1404 SINNODDY

6 €20 0L 6 €£20¢ 1Ivi3d vNdanocC 60 £20Z ¥Od

Ld0d3y 1390N4g LVA-OL-MVIA
ALNNOD I9VLYOd




0T

abed
00°$2S‘T 00°
%0° 00°vZs‘T 00°
%0° 00°vZS‘T 00°
%0° 00°vZS'T 00°

102/3SN 135dng SIONVAEWNIONT

LT°€TS‘T
00°
£27€e5°T
00°
00°
00"

IYNLOVY QLW

pngpiA LB 1ar wesboud
umwguunumu 1Jasn
9€:10T £20Z/0T/0T :po1edausb 1uaodey

JONVIVE ONNd A3STAIY
S3SNIdX3/SANNIATY 40 L3N - FONVIVE ANNd NI IDNVHO
JONVIVE ANNd ¥0Idd

00" ST 0 S3SNIdX3 TV.IOL

00" ¥eS'T 0 dded UBBJUOW TV1OL

00" ¥zs'T 0 SW Jed uebBJOW VLOL

00° ¥Z8°'T 0 S|leLJaien 00000S S606ZT98

vNLOY dlA 135dn4 d0¥ddVv dded ueb.oi 198

12d J1aVIIVAY

6 €207 0L 6 €707 1IViIA TYNUNOC

(QJ3STA3d IYNIDIHO 1 d04 SINNODOV

60 £20Z ¥od

LH0d3Y 139dN8 ALVA-OL-dVIA

uonnjos dia skl \ﬂ-!llh
S o

siunw %%,

ALNNOD 39VLAO0d



phgp1ALb 1a1 weabBoad
15 L4Yyoeass taasn
11 abed wm"cﬂmNoNoH\oﬂ“uoum(_u:amu._onwz

OV 8y ‘€1 IDNVIVE ANNd QISIATY
00" S3SNIAXI/SINNIATY 40 L3N - IONVIVE ANNd NI IONVHD
OV ¥8Y ‘€T IINVIVE ONNd HOT¥d
ST LTZ TTS 00" 00" S.°86T°8S 9T¥ 048 0 SISNIIXT TVLIOL
§T 8L 86V~ 00° 00" S.°86T°8S- T1£6°955~ 0 S3ANNIATY TVIO0L
%0" 00°S8 ' T 00" 00" 00" S8V €T 0 pund AeMuaaJn 394D SJuLLl VIOL
%v°0T SZ°ZEL'86P 00" 00° S. 86T 8S T€6 9SS 0 pund Aemuas.us 884D SJ/ULL TVIOL
#%0°00T S.-86T'8S- 00" 00" S 86T'8S 0 0 foud 31suod gad¥s 000089 96069198
%0° 00°T€695S 00" 00° 00" T€6 9SS 0 foud 1su0d 000089 96069198
0D pund AeMUD3.9 334D SJINULL 96069798
%0" 00" S8V ‘€T Q0° 00° 00" S8 €T 0 puni Aemussu9 3o9Jd SadULL IVLIO0L
%0" 00°S8V ‘€T 00° 00" 00° S8V ET 0 AJBS JU0D  00000F $6069T98
SD pund AeMUD3UD 3994D SJUBNULL $6069T98
%v° 0T ST TEL 86— 00" 00° S, 861°8S- T€6°9SS- 0 pund AeMU33JD 394D SJBNULL TVLIOL
2%0" 00" TE6°9SS- 00" 00" 00" T1€6°955- 0 1UBJS 1S 904¥S 000T6T T6069T98
%0°00T S/°86T°8S 00" 00" S.Z 86T ‘8S- 0 0 uedd 1S 000T6T T6O69T98

dd pund ABMUDDID OD4D SJafULl TH069LI8

102/3sn 135dng SIADNVHIWNINI IvNLDY dlW vNLOY AlA 135dn9 d0¥ddv pund AemuUzadd 32942 SJdULL 9798
12d A19VIIVAY J3SIATY TYNIDIAHO H0d S1INNODDV

6 €707 OL 6 €202 1IV.3A TVYNAINOC 60 £€20Z ¥od

Ld0d=y 1390N49 3LVA-0OL-¥V3IA
ALNNOD I9VIiMOd




r4n

abed

%S79ST
%0’

%0°

%0° 00T

%%0° 00T

102/3sn

00°9Z¢'S 00"
0e" - 00"
0L£°S2e'S 00"
00°9z¢'S 00°
00°92¢'S 00°
0€"~ 00°
og" -~ 00°

13sang S3DONVYENNINT

99°T20°02
02"SPL ¥T
96°52€'S

00"
00°

00°
00*

00°

00°

00°

aVNLDOY dli

00’
0L7S¥L bT-

0L°Sv2 vI-
00°

00"

0L°SvL PT-

0L°S¥L'vT-

IVALOV alLA

9z7€‘Ss
9v.'vI-

0zt ‘6-
9ze ‘s

9ze's

9%L ' bI-

9L vT-

139dng

pnqpak|6 :qI weuaboud
1S L4Yoedss 1Jasn
9€:0T £20Z/0T/0T :pe3edausb JJodsy

JONVIVE ANNd d3SIAIY
SISNIdXT/SINNIATY 40 L3N - TvE AN NI IONVHD
FONVIVE NN ¥0Idd

o o oo

d0dddV

S3ASN3I4X3 TvIOL
SANNIATY TvIOL

Aemusaun }oaud 9| b6e3 IVLOL
SW Aemudsud 3ovJd 8 be3a viol

spetJda1eW 000005 S606.T98

S AeMUD3JD Y9240 2|be3 S606/T98

Ud Aemuddun 94D o|6e3a Tviol

luedd IS I0903 000T6T T606.T98

dd ABMUDIJD 394D 3| be3 T606/T198

Aemusadd 94D 3| he3 £T98

10d

6 ¢£20¢

A79VIIVAY

0L 6 €£20Z 1Iviad TTvNiINOC

Q3SINIY

TYNIDIHO

. 404 SINNODIV

60 €20¢ ¥od

LHO0d3 1390N9 31VA-OL-dVIA

ALNNOD 39V.1™O0d



pngpiA L6 I wedboud
ASLAYOBISD sJdasn
€T abed 9£:0T £70Z/0T/0T :poleJdudld 1.oday

#x ISLIYDLIS DLUT AQ PRIBIDUDD - L1OdIY 40 ANI 4«
%8 ¥Z- LTVSR'9LE'T  00'TLT'vLT EPv09°22T ¥6°887°8€L- 9€2°2/8°'T  60S°‘TH8 TVL0L ANVED

102/3sn 13%dn4 SADNVAEWNIONT IVNLDY Gl IVNLOVY dLlA 135ang d0dddv

12d I3V ITIVAY J3STAIY TYNIDTIANO
6 €207 OL 6 €207 1IV1i3d TVNINOC 60 £20T ¥od

1¥0d3d 139an8 3LvVQ-0l-4v3A

uannios dia Jaihy &

siunuw ° G ALNNOD 39VLHOd




pnqpasLb 1QI weaboud
1sLJ4yoeas? 143sn
1 abed 9€:0T mNcNuoﬁ\o.n 1po3eIdUIb 1003y

apo> dn oy

SN1els UunoddvY

adA1 1unodovy

1o9loud

133lqo

640

3pod JIIdBJBRYD

Kaobazed

uungod

auLT

1Jedag-gns

ausulJedaa

Kouaby

uoLioung

%98 pund

anjeA pLaLd dWeN pLoLd
eLJ3L4D pulLd

a IM3LA JedALI|NW
N :aunouwe uolLitsLnbas 8pn|dur

T :uolido jewsol |teisd A iddue|eg pund 3pn|dUI
L :# Od 40 # 3C Aq 340§ N 049z se siabpnq SnudAsd uLdd
N is®LJaud bir|/qundoud |JuI T :9dA1 1ewlod
A isolLJlue 19bpnq epn|aul N :sBuLpesy UOLSUDA-SDNUDAIY Iuldd
6 /€202 :Jod/JA oL A UOLSJSA Al JulLud
6 /£20C :.43d/JA woud $ :uolLldLudsap doys JO ||hd Juldd

A :Lileiep [euanol ulLad
T :9pod paemso} AuJted
13043¥ 1395ang9 3Lva-0L1-AVIA
N :31delqo o1 sadalouad ||Lov 191211 Jloday
N I92eds a|qnoq

N fjunod2e 79 LLn} Julad N N 0 ¥ @ouanbes

A :S12J® |eq 04dZ ssaJddns N N 0 € 3dusnbas

N tALUO S|®1031 ULJd N A 6 ¢ ddusnbas

A 11LpDJd Se dNUIAIJ Iulud A A T 1 93uanbes
6 /€207 :poLJ3ad/JedA JNeaJdg @bed [eioL # pLoLd

SNOILdO _Ld0d3d
L1¥0d3Y 1390aN8 31VA-OL-¥VaA
ALNNOD 39V.1N0d




To: Portage Park District Board of Commissioners
From: Christine Craycroft, Executive Director
Re: Executive Director’s Staff Update

Board of Commissioners Regular Meeting
October 16, 2023 5:30 PM

DISTRICT

Administration/Special Projects
1. Continued planning and pursuit of funding for multiple planning, acquisition and development
projects.
2. Presented on history of Portage Parks, progress and plans to multiple groups.
Continued coordination with Park District Foundation
4. Continued coordination with WRLC on Portage Meadows project and grant applications; held
public preserve peek and neighbors’ hike to address questions and concerns.
5. Promoted Natural Areas Specialist Emmet Roberts to Natural Areas Steward in recognition of
his growing responsibilities, implementation of drone and bathymetric surveys and public
assistance with volunteers and public engagement.

b

Park Operations, Maintenance, and iImprovement
Maintenance/Operations
1. Continue to perform routine tasks including restroom cleaning and trash removal, inventory,
and supply management, building maintenance, vehicle and equipment maintenance, trail
checks, trail maintenance and downed tree removal.
2. Continued weekly monitoring of beaver activity at Trail Lake Dam and Seneca Ponds.

Park Improvements
1. The project to improve the picnic area overlooking Trail Lake has been completed.
2. Continue to maintain access to Preserve properties for guided public tours and participate as
needed.

Natural Areas Stewardship
Stewardship and Restoration

1. Morgan Park- invasive shrub control.
2. lLate season phragmites treatments as possible, various locations

Projects/Planning
1. Portage Meadows- Gathered drone footage for Clean OH presentation; assisted with preserve

peeks.

2. Seasons Fen- Monthly meeting; sprayed upland areas in preparation for meadow and forest
establishment- ES provided herbicide, PPD equipment and staff applied.

3. Franklin Bog Preserve Peek in coordination with park staff and Davey Tree.

Partnership/Collaboration/Training
1. CRCWMA (Crooked River Cooperative Weed Management Association) steering meetings

2. Attended Ohio Wildlife Diversity Partnership meeting- group session to revise the State Wildlife
Action Plan (SWAP)



3. LEAP meeting, Kirkland.

Public Outreach and Education

e We continue to collaborate with the Portage Park District Foundation to have a presence at
community events and speaking engagements.

¢ Kiosk layout and materials are being updated and installed by staff and volunteer Joe DeFuria
this month.

e The 1% Annual Rocktober Museum was a big success! Holly Stoneberg, Becca Rodhe & Emmet
Roberts created an incredible visitor experience featuring rocks, minerals and geologic treasures
from Ohio and beyond. We had guest geologists from KSU and within our volunteer base.
Lakeside Sand & Gravel also loaned education materials and Portage County rock samples.

e Program Guide planning underway for January-February-March edition. We are exploring
mailing and distribution options.

e Holly Stoneberg, Education Program Coordinator:

o September 2023 programming numbers
= 213 park program participants
= 735 event participants
o Balloon-A-Fair and Brimfest were both well attended and positive. Over 700 people
were reached through these events.
o We finished our first FrogWatch USA season with over 111 observations made.
o Preserve Peeks continue to fill up. Many people have been asking about the “future
park” signs.

e Becca Rodhe, Education & Qutreach Specialist:

o Volunteer Appreciation Event is planned for Thursday, October 19 at Morgan
Operations Center.

Ranger Department for the Month of September

Patrol Activities

Foot patrol miles — 6.01 + 43.2; Bike patrol miles —43.2 + 41.6; Visitor Contacts —41 + 161; Warnings — 1
+ 1.

Administrative

Ranger Lee — Warned a person walking a dog off leash on the Headwaters Trail. Completed a criminal
damage report reference picnic table that was flipped over at Trail Lake. Participated in the Balloon a

Fair and Brimfest parades. Successfully completed annual firearms qualification. Participated in senior
hike and sneak peek at Franklin Bog.

Chief Ranger Nietert — Completed 3-hour training National Center for Missing and Exploited Children
and 4-hour training Mass Violence and Mass Protest (CPT). Submitted for reimbursement of CPT training
through the State of Ohio. Cleaned up a shopping cart, bucket, and bike frame along Portage Hike and
Bike Trail. Participated in senior and tree identification hikes. Implemented deer archery program and
conducted deer orientation training and proficiency testing with Bob Lange. Warned a person riding a
bike in Towners Woods. Helped with the Potato Stomp. Enrolled in Leadership Portage County.
Successfully completed annual firearms qualification. Submitted grant request to the State of Ohio for
(2) Body Worn Cameras in the amount of $6,162. Park District will be responsible for ongoing annual
subscription for cloud storage.



RESOLUTION # 2023-57

Re: Resolution approving Portage Park District expenditures for the month of September 2023

WHEREAS: The following expenditures have been made in September 2023 in the following budget categories:

‘General Operating Fund #8600
Description Payee Amount

Unit 30 Payroll/Personal Servicas | Portage County Auditor/Payroll $ 98,484.78
‘Unit 40 Contract Services $ 84,447.64
Contract Services: print services, graphic design, health coverage, Print & Sign, Janet Fashbaugh, PO CO HR, Treas. Of State, Coldwell, $ 2024830
LEADS, RE appraisal, software Sours Buie, US Bank { Adobe, BIB, MARCS) o
Training & Reimbursements: event, reimbursement Craycroft, US Bank (OPRA, Qutdoor News, ODA, OH turnpike) $ 322.50
Utilities: Natural gas at 2 locations, electric at 6 locations Ohic Edison, Dominion, US Bank (Spectrum, AT&T} $ 2,100.51
Advartising-Marketing: Constant Contact, legal ads {US Bank {Gannett, Constant Contact) $ 836.31
Maintenance & Repairs: portable toilet service Portage Portable Toilet, US Bank (Kimble, Dan's Automotive) $ 1,591.18
Leases: copiers Konica Minolta $ 94.73
Prof Services: print design fees Print & Sign S 4.02
Other Fees: capping of well |ODNR S 250.00
Unit 50 Materials & Supplies S

Admin. Materials & Supplies: copy toner, office supplies Konica Minolta, US Bank (Amazon, Marc's, Target) $

Uniforms: shirts, pants US Bank (Amazon) $
Maintenance Materials & Supplies: materials, small tools, hardware US Bénk(isctor Supply, Mantua Harware, Montighey fiardware, 5

Carter tumber)

Fuel: Gasoline and diesel ; City of Ravenna $ 1,593.13
Natural Areas Materials & Supplies: hardware waypoint signage US Bank (Municipal Signs, Sportsman Internet} $ 917.79
‘Unit 60 Capital $ 3,000.00
Engineering: Towner's Woods Building debris removal Helmling Excavating $ 3,000.00
‘Unit 90 General Admin S -

GENERAL FUND GRAND TOTAL ALL UNITS 30 THROUGH 90 | $ 140,126.55

WHEREAS The Board of Park Commissioners authorizes expenses by Budgetary Unit per its budget appropriations resolutions,
and

WHEREAS These specific expenditures have been approved by the Executive Director per the approved Park District annual
budget and Park District bylaws and all copies of invoices and receipts are available upon request.

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District hereby approves the
above expenditures made in September 2023.

Upon a motion by T. Hrdy and second by C. Engelhart the vote was as follows:

C. Engelhart: YES T.Hrdy: YES  A.Orashan: YES R. Ruchotzke: YES K. Ruehr: YES

| certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open meeting on October 16, 2023.

Y2 =

Christifie Créycroft, Executive Director




= 3. .H"MNEX: 51"+ . L .rafdy™ "

5
n

== = -'I'.:h:'l-":'"“-" = L

a R



Re:

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

WHEREAS

RESOLVED

RESOLUTION #2023-58

A resolution authorizing the Executive Director to apply for federal Transportation
Alternative Set Aside (TASA) Funds for the Headwaters Trail Phase IX

The Portage Park District currently manages the 8.5-mile Headwaters Trail between
Garrettsville and Mantua, and

An application for Headwaters Trail Phase VIII, 1.4 miles from Chamberlain to Diagonal
Roads in Mantua Township, was submitted to the Clean Ohio Trails Fund in 2023, and

Phase IX of the Headwaters Trail would connect Phase VIl at Diagonal Road with the
completed Phase VIl portion of trail at Mennonite Road, via a 1.5-mile, 10-foot wide
separated path located within road rights-of-way, including trailhead parking, and

A preliminary cost estimate for the engineering and construction of the Headwaters Trail
Phase X was developed based upon a feasibility study dated March 2016, and inflated to
an estimated current value of $1,517,896, and

The Headwaters Trail has been identified as a priority regional trail in numerous community
plans for over 20 years, including the Portage Park District Master Plan and the AMATS
2040 Transportation Outlook Bicycle Recommendations, NOW, THEREFORE BE IT

by the Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District that:

1. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to apply for Federal Transportation
Alternative Set Aside Funds programmed by the Akron Metropolitan Area
Transportation Study (AMATS) for engineering and construction of the 1.5-mile
Headwaters Trail Phase IX, from Diagonal Road to Mennonite Road in Mantua
Township, Portage County, Ohio with a total estimated cost of $1,517,896.

2. The Board of Commissioners of the Portage Park District acknowledges and understands
the AMATS Funding Policy Guidelines and confirms to the best of its knowledge that the
information contained in the project application is accurate, that it intends to diligently
pursue that project and that a local share is required to match federal funds.

3. That it is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of the Board of Park
Commissioners concerning and relating to the passage of this Resolution were taken in
an open meeting of this Board and that all deliberations of this Board and any of its
committees that resulted in such formal action were meeting open to the public and in
compliance with the law.

Upon a motion by R. Ruchotzke and second by A. Orashan, the vote was as follows:

A.Orashan YES T.Hrdy YES C.Engelhart YES K.Ruehr YES R.Ruchotzke YES

| certify that the foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and action taken in an open meeting on
October 16, 2023

Yt hmpnf”

Christine Craycro;‘t, Executive Director







AMATS

Transportation Alternatives Set Aside
Project Application

Due Friday November 3, 2023; Please email completed applications to aprater@akronohio.gov

Funding for bike and pedestrian facilities. Facilities do not need to be located on the federal functional classification system.
TASA funds can be used for planning (Safe Routes To School), engineering, right of way and construction

Maximum TASA project request is $1,000,000.

Minimum local match is 20% but may be reduced to 10% if participating in the Project Delivery Incentive Program (PDIP)
PDIP requires TASA projects PS&E submitted to ODOT within four years of award.

Project Sponsor Contact Person

Name:
Title:
Address:

Is this a PDIP Project? | Yes No

Phone:

Email:

Project Name |

Location |
Termini |
If a trail project, has a feasiblity analysis* been completed? If so, please attach. Yes

*See Funding Policy Guidelines for details

Length (Miles) |

Briefly describe why this project is needed

Consistency with Plans (Please Circle ) Comments:
Is the project a part of a Safe Routes to School Travel Plan? Yes No

(if so, attach) ‘

Is the pr_oject in a Connecting Communities Plan? : i Yes No

Is the praect recommended in Transportation Outlook 20457 Yes No

Is the praeét IocattE)n_a_n_existing transit line? ' Yes No

Does the project area have a history of bike/ped crashes? - Yes . No

(provide documentation) |

Will the project include; rapid ﬂash_in_g beacon, refuge island, Yes No |
pedestrian hybrid beacon, crosswalk visibility enhancement?

Page 1 of 2




Anticipated Project Schedule

Project Milestone Month Year Comments
Legislation with ODOT ' -
Hire Consultant -
Environmental Clearance =
R/W Plans Complete -
R/W Acquired =
Construction Plans Complete o Ll
Project Sale j =
Begin Construction T _ -
Anticipated Funding Requirements (Maximum TASA project request is $1 ,000,000)
Funding Estimated
Project Phase FY Source Cost Percent Remarks
Prelim. Engineering Local (20%) min. local share
& Design TASA (_80%) max. fed. share
Other* :
PE Total
Right-of-Way Local (20%) min. local share
TASA : (80%) max. fed. share
Other*
ROW Total )
Construction Local (20%) min. local share
(including construction TASA - (80%) max. fed. share
inspection) Other*
. Other*
. Eonstruction Total )
Project Total

* identify other funding sources in comments column

Does your municipality have an ADA Transition Plan?  (Please Circle )

Yes No

Please use the space below to provide any additional information about this project.

Page 2 of 2




RTA
QAT

5 HEADWATER'S TRATL: ALIGNMENT STUDY

PARK March 2016

DISTRICT




PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT:
HEADWATERS TRAIL
ALIGNMENT

PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT

2%

Aotte

Aeth

——
[




sAm

swans

[RLLLAS

IR R SRR Ty

Y
__-'MA__’W%H LINE SH
¥

A

.

oF
P

E

.

¥

.

e

-
=

-

¥
oo aml
. -

-

e

I (D sovmonmmmacenenson
q

Sat o

g

PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT:

PEVION DRTA
Ll el vl
P AN
LY

HEADWATER'S TRAIL
ALIGNMENT
PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT

mzacTuar 1eoncasn

e 220

PREFERRED
ALIGHMENT

2 19




i PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT: i

w HEEHH HEADWATER'S TRAIL = e _— ol
§ g ALIGNMENT b ] ey [ EE & Q?E’ 1 g
REVD A
h § PORTAGE PARK DISTRICT ; i e | G 5§ il
- 8
N i i
\ g o fs



TYPICAL SIDEPATH



|EXCAVATION & EMBANKMENT

|TOPSOIL STRIPPING AND STOCKPILING

B04E20000  |6° AGOREGATE BASE |554 cUYD  [$68.00 $37.690.89
A4BEAB020  |1.5° ASPHALT CONCRETE INTERMEDIATE COURSE, TYPE 4. PGB4-22 126 YD [$12000 $15,116.67
SOTELO000  |TACK COAT 2041 GAL $250 |$5.101 88
S4BCABD04 |15 ASPHALT CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE, TYPE 4, PG70-22M 126 CUYD |$150.00 $1889583
SPECIAL [ectLarD 2 EA $800.00 $1.600.00
SPECIAL |REMOVEABLE BOLLARD 1 EA $1.200.00 $1.200.00
_%ms_z. |KIOSK 1 E4 $7.50000 $7.500.00
SPECIAL UTILITY POLE GUY RELOCATION Y EA $3.000.00 $3,000.00
SPECIAL [T3-CAR ASPHALT PARWING LOT 5 B

$45.00 $30.375.00
0 0.26

SSOEDOBO0  |SEEDING AND MULCHING 2819 lsoy [s200 $4,837.33
859 LANDSCAPE ALLOWANCE i s $15.00000  |$15.000.00

CONTINGENCGY (20%)

|GENERAL CONDITIONS (4%}
|BONDS AND INSURANCES (2.5%)
MOBILZATION AND DEMOBILIZZATION (1%) $2.773.50
ENGINEERING AND DOCUMENTS (18%) $49922.98

[Limestone Trall Atemative




203E40000  [EXCAVATION & EMBANKMENY 399 CUYD  [$30.00 $31.977.98
|FOPSOIL STRIPPING AND STOCKPILING 799 CUYD [$8.00 $6,988.45

204E10000  |SUBGRADE COMPACTION 3422 SQYD [$4.50 $35.400.00

SPECWUL

S04E20000  |6° AGGREGATE BASE 627 CUYD  [$68.00 $42,683.70

4ABEAB020  [1.5' ASPHALT CONCRETE INTERMEDIATE COURSE, TWPE 1, FGB4-22 143 CUYD  ($120.00 $17.111.14

AOTEL0000  [TACK COAT 2310 GAL $2.50 $5,775.00

A48E40004  |1.5 " ASPHALY CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE, TYPE 4, PGT0-22M 143 CUYD  [$150.00 $21,388.89
— 8.888.70

$500.00

MAINTAINING TRAFFIC
Subte

CONTINGENCY (20%)
GENERAL CONDITIONS (&%) $7.174.07
BONDS AND INSURANCES (25%) $4.483.79
|MOBILIZATION AND DEMOBILIZATION (4%) $1.703.52
ENGINEERING AND DOCUMENTS (18%) $32.263.29

ASPHALT TRAIL TOTAL

Lienestons Trall Atemative

ASPHALY PAVEMENT DEDUCTION TOTAL -$44,275.00
A4SEABO04  [1.5' LIMESTONE SCREENINGS 143 cuYD [s25.00 $3.564.84

LIMESTD LAl 0 2 A

Assumptions
Carlton bypass 2,050’ additional in ROW trail based on average cost of $86/ft of rest of ROW trail: $176,300 limestone; $99/ft asphalt






